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Forward-looking statement

In this Annual Report we have disclosed forward-looking information to enable investors to comprehend our
prospects and take informed investment decisions. This report and other statements - written and oral - that
we periodically make contain forward-looking statements that set out anticipated results based on the
management’s plans and assumptions. We have tried wherever possible to identify such statements by using
words such as ‘anticipates’, ‘estimates’, ‘expects’, ‘projects’, ‘intends’, ‘plans’, ‘believes’ and words of similar

substance in connection with any discussion of future performance.

We cannot guarantee that these forward-looking statements will be realised, although we believe we have
been prudent in assumptions. The achievement of results is subject to risks, uncertainties and even inaccurate
assumptions. Should known or unknown risks or uncertainties materialise, or should underlying assumptions
prove inaccurate, actual results could vary materially from those anticipated, estimated or projected. Readers

should bear this in mind.

We undertake no obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new

information, future events or otherwise.
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PROXY FORM
FOLIO NO. :
CLIENT ID NO. : NO. OF EQUITY SHARES :
DP ID NO. :
I/We of

being Equity Shareholder(s) of Apar Industries Limited hereby appoint

of or failing him/her

of as my / our Proxy to attend and vote for me / us and on my / our behalf

at the 22nd Annual General Meeting of the Equity Shareholders of the Company to be held on Wednesday, 24th August, 2011 at
10:30 A.M. at the Auditorium of the Vanijya Bhavan, Central Gujarat Chamber of Commerce, Race Course Circle,

Vadodara — 390 007 and at any adjournment thereof.

Affix a

As witness my / our hand(s) this day of 2011. RSeFi\/eénLe
amp

here

Signature (s) of shareholder (s)

N. B. This Proxy Form must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not later than 48 hours before the time for holding

the meeting. The Proxy need not be a Shareholder of the Company.
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22ND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING - 24TH AUGUST, 2011

ATTENDANCE SLIP

(To be handed over at the entrance of the meeting Venue)

FOLIO NO. :
CLIENT ID NO. : NO. OF EQUITY SHARES :

DP ID NO. :

Name of the attending member (in block letters)

Name of proxy (in block letters)

(to be filled by the proxy attending instead of the member)

| hereby record my presence at the 22nd Annual General Meeting to be held on Wednesday, 24th August, 2011 at 10:30 A.M.

at the Auditorium of Vanijya Bhavan, Central Gujarat Chamber of Commerce, Race Course Circle, Vadodara-390 007.

Member’s / Proxy’s Signature

Notes: 1) Interested joint members may obtain attendance slip from the Regd. Office of the Company.

2) Members /Joint members / Proxies are requested to bring attendance slip with them. Duplicate slips will not be issued at

the entrance of the Auditorium.
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F| Na ﬂCIa | H |g h | | g htS for last five years (Consolidated)

(Rs. in million)
Particulars 2010-11 2009-10 2008-09 2007-08 2006-07

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT DATA

Sales (Net of Excise) 30,283 22,355 26,371 17,658 15,114
% of Growth 35 (15) 49 17 36
Exports 7,442 6,236 7,899 6,874 3,157
Materials, Operating and other costs 28,129 20,901 25,717 16,467 14,047
Employee cost 375 321 256 185 159
Depreciation 205 185 147 140 100
Interest and Discounting charges 135 332 412 371 324
Profit before tax, exceptional & Extraordinary Items 1,538 1,016 5 739 686
% of Growth 51 19,083 (99) 8 26
Taxation 578 224 23 118 167
Profit after tax (PAT) 960 792 (18) 621 519
Exceptional items - 12 17 38 38
Extraordinary Items - net of tax - 603 - (323) -
Associate profit/(loss) - - (58) (13) -
Minority interest (7) 67 40 4) 1
Balance of Profit 953 244 (53) 889 482
% of Growth 290 - (106) 84 15
BALANCE SHEET DATA

Share Capital 323 323 323 323 323
Reserves & Surplus 3,191 2,511 2,476 2,521 1,844
Net worth 3,514 2,834 2,799 2,844 2,167
Minority interest 5 3 79 6 -
Loan Funds 1,359 1,617 1,615 1,009 1,328
Defferred Tax (Net) 89 72 63 54 139
Total Liabilities 4,967 4,526 4,556 3,913 3,634
Gross Block 3,283 3,091 2,794 1,469 2,234
Net Block 1,862 1,811 1,793 1,107 1,604
Investments including Goodwill on Consolidation - - 603 374 3
Net Current assets 3,105 2,715 2,148 2,403 1,984
Miscellaneous Expenditure

(to the extent not written off or adjusted) - - 12 29 43
Total Assets 4,967 4,526 4,556 3,913 3,634
KEY RATIOS

PAT to Sales (%) 3.15 1.09 (0.20) 5.03 3.19
Return on Net Worth (%) 30.03 30.57 (1.28) 37.53 26.61
Asset Turns (Revenue to total Assets) 6.39 4.97 6.27 4.74 4.61
Return on Capital Employed (%) * 21.85 24.65 5.94 24.49 23.30
Debt to Equity Ratio 0.21 0.36 0.41 0.07 0.29
Earning per Equity Share (Basic) Rs. 29.48 7.56 (1.65) 27.48 15.42
Rate of dividend % p.a. 60% 50% - 55% 35%
Book value per Equity Share Rs. 108.68 87.63 86.22 87.08 65.68
Share Price as on 31st March (BSE) 214.90 197.50 78.05 205.70 139.20

* Excluding extraordinary items
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Notice

NOTICE is hereby given that the TWENTY SECOND Annual

General Meeting of the Equity Shareholders of APAR

INDUSTRIES LIMITED will be held at the Auditorium of the

Vanijya Bhavan, Central Gujarat Chamber of Commerce,

Race Course Circle, Vadodara — 390 007 on Wednesday, the

24th August, 2011 at 10:30 A.M. to transact the following

business :

Ordinary Business :

1. To receive, consider and adopt Balance Sheet as at 31st
March, 2011 and Profit and Loss Account for the year
ended on that date together with Reports of Directors and
Auditors thereon.

2. To confirm declaration of Interim Dividend on Equity
Shares and declare final dividend on Equity Shares of the
Company.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Shri F. B. Virani, who
retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment.

4. To appoint a Director in place of Shri Kushal N. Desai, who
retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-

appointment.

5. To appoint Auditors of the Company and to fix their
remuneration.

Special Business :

6. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without
modification, the following Resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution :

“RESOLVED THAT Mr. Rajesh Sehgal, who was appointed
as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from
27th June, 2011, by the Board of Directors and who holds
office upto the date of this Annual General Meeting of the
Company under Section 260 of the Companies Act, 1956,
be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company.”

Registered Office : By Order of the Board,

301, Panorama Complex, For Apar Industries Ltd.
R. C. Dutt Road,

Vadodara 390 007.

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27th June, 2011.

Sanjaya Kunder
Company Secretary

NOTES :

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE IS ALSO
ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY OR PROXIES TO ATTEND
AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF. SUCH PROXY
NEED NOT BE A MEMBER. THE PROXY FORM DULY
COMPLETED AND SIGNED SHOULD REACH THE
COMPANY'S REGISTERED OFFICE AT LEAST 48 HOURS
BEFORE THE TIME APPOINTED FOR THE MEETING.

2. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books for the
Equity Shares of the Company shall remain closed from
Wednesday, August 17, 2011 to Wednesday, August 24,
2011, both days inclusive.

3. Members desirous of obtaining information / details about
the accounts, are requested to write to the Company at
least one week before the meeting, so that proper
information can be made available at the time of meeting.

4. Shareholders who have not so far surrendered their old
share certificates of Gujarat Apar Polymers Limited (GAPL)
for exchange against the new share certificates of the

Company i.e. Apar Industries Limited (AIL) are once again
requested to forward their old share certificates to the
Company for exchange. In terms of the Listing Agreement
with the Stock Exchanges, the Registrar and Share Transfer
Agent of the Company, MCS Limited has sent necessary
reminders to the concerned Shareholders in this regard.
The old share certificates of GAPL have already been
cancelled and are of no effect or value.

5. Members holding shares in dematerialised form, may
please note that while opening a depository account with
Depository Participant (DP), they have given their bank
account details, which will be printed on their dividend

However, if any member wants to change /

correct the bank account details, he / she should

warrants.

communicate the same immediately to the concerned
Depository Participant (DP). Members are also requested to
furnish the bank account details along with MICR code of
their bank to their Depository Participant so as to enable
the Company to ensure payment of dividend through
Electronic Clearing Service (ECS).
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. The details of Directors seeking appointment / re-
appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting as
required in terms of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of

the Stock Exchanges are also annexed hereto and forming
part of the Notice.

. All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and
the Explanatory Statements are open for inspection at the
Registered Office of the Company during the Office hours
on all working days except Sundays between 11.00 A.M.
and 4.00 P.M. up to the date of the ensuing Annual
General Meeting and at the meeting, during the meeting
hours.

. Corporate Members intending to send their Authorised
Representative to attend the meeting are requested to send
a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorising their
representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the
Meeting.

. Consequent upon the introduction of Section 205C by the
Companies (Amendment) Act, 1999, the amount of
dividend remaining unpaid or unclaimed for a period of
seven years from the date of its transfer to the unpaid
Dividend Account of the Company is required to be
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
(IEPF) set up by the Government of India and no payment
shall be made in respect of any such claims by the Fund.

The amount of unclaimed dividend upto the financial year
ended March 31, 2003 has been transferred to IEPF. The
unpaid / unclaimed Dividend amount of Equity Shares of
the Company paid on 02.08.2004 (7th Dividend for 2003-
04) and on 19.11.2004 (8th Equity Interim Dividend (First
Interim) — 2004-05) are due for transfer to the said fund in
the month of September, 2011 and January, 2012,
respectively. Members who have not yet encashed their
warrant (s) are requested to make their claims to the
Company without any delay.

10. (@) As stated in Para No. 8 (b) of the Directors’ Report, the
Company has not attached the Annual Accounts,
Reports and other Statements pursuant to Section
212(1) of the Companies Act, 1956, in respect of — (a)
Petroleum Specialities Pte. Ltd., Singapore (PSPL) and
(b) Poweroil Speciality Products FZE, Sharjah, U.A.E.,
Wholly Owned Subsidiaries (WOS) of the Company; (c)
Quantum Apar Speciality Oils Pty. Ltd., Australia,
Subsidiary of PSPL (d) Uniflex Cables Limited (UCL), a
Subsidiary Company and (e) Marine Cables & Wires
Private Limited, WOS of UCL, with the Annual Report of
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11.

12.

the Company for the financial year ended March 31,
2011 in accordance with the general circular issued by
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India
(MCA). The Company has fulfilled all the conditions of
the said Circular in the Annual Report attached
herewith.

(b) A Statement showing information in aggregate of the
said subsidiary Companies in compliance with the
aforesaid General Circular of Ministry of Corporate
Affairs has been attached with the financial statements.

(c) The Company shall provide a copy of the Annual
Accounts and related information / reports for the year
2010-2011 of the subsidiary Companies as required
under Section 212 of the Act to the shareholders on
their request, free of cost, at any point of time. Further,
the annual accounts of subsidiary Companies shall be
available for inspection at the Registered Office and
Corporate Office of the Company and that of the
respective subsidiary Company.

The required Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section
173 (2) of the Companies Act, 1956 in respect of Special
Business is annexed hereto, forming part of the Notice.

The Company has implemented the “Green Initiative” as
per Circular Nos. 17/2011 dated April 21, 2011 and
18/2011 dated April 29, 2011 issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs (MCA) to enable electronic delivery of
notices / documents and annual reports to shareholders.
Henceforth, the email addresses indicated in your
respective Depository Participant (DP) accounts which will
be periodically downloaded from NSDL / CDSL will be
deemed to be your email address for serving notices /
documents including those covered under Section 219 of
the Companies Act, 1956. The Notice of AGM and the
copies of audited financial statements, directors’ report,
auditors’ report etc. will also be displayed on the website
www.apar.com of the Company and the other
requirements of the aforesaid MCA circular will be duly
complied with. Members holding shares in electronic mode
are, therefore, requested to ensure to keep their email
addresses updated with the Depository Participants.
Members holding shares in physical mode are also
requested to update their email addresses by sending email
to investorservices@apar.com quoting their folio number.
The Shareholders can register their email address, by
sending an Email at investorservices@apar.com (email ID)
quoting their Folio No. / DP ID — Client ID in order to
facilitate the Company to service the documents through
electronic mode.



Annexure to Notice

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 173 (2) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956.

ITEM NO. 6 :

The agenda item no. 6 of the Notice relates to the
appointment of Mr. Rajesh Sehgal as an Investor Director not
liable to retire by rotation.

In terms of the Subscription and Investor Rights Agreement
dated 31st March, 2011 entered into between the Company
and M/s. Templeton Strategic Emerging Markets Fund I,
L.D.C., (Templeton), the allottee of 3,636,363 Equity Shares of
Rs. 10/- each, and Article Nos. 133A and 136 of the Articles of
Association of the Company, the Board of Directors of the
Company has appointed Mr. Rajesh Sehgal, as an Additional
Director of the Company w.e.f. 27th June, 2011 upon receipt
of his nomination from Templeton.

In terms of Section 260 of the Companies Act, 1956, Mr.
Rajesh Sehgal shall hold office of Director upto the date of
ensuing Annual General Meeting (AGM). The Company has
received valid notice and requisite deposit from a member of
the Company under Section 257 of the said Act, proposing the
candidature of Mr. Rajesh Sehgal for the office of Director.

Mr. Rajesh Sehgal is a Senior Executive Director in Templeton
organisation since 1999. He has research responsibilities for
companies in India, Africa, and the Middle East and is involved
in managing the Templeton Strategic Emerging Markets Fund.

Mr. Sehgal earned his M.B.A. in business management with
specialisation in finance and marketing from XLRI (India) and a
B.S. with specialisation in physics. He received his CFA charter
in 2005. He was awarded a post-graduate diploma in securities
law from the Government Law College in Mumbai. He has
earlier been awarded the International Capital Markets
Qualification by the Securities Institute, London.

The Board, therefore, commends the Resolution for approval
by the Members. The copy of Subscription and Investor Rights
Agreement dated 31st March, 2011 and Articles of Association
of the Company are available for inspection at the Registered
Office of the Company on all working days except Sundays,
between 11:00 A.M. and 4:00 P.M. upto the date of meeting
and at the meeting, during the meeting hours.

None of the Directors of the Company, except Mr. Rajesh
Sehgal, is in any way concerned or interested in the resolution.

Registered Office : By Order of the Board,

301, Panorama Complex, For Apar Industries Ltd.
R. C. Dutt Road,

Vadodara 390 007.

Sanjaya Kunder
Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27th June, 2011.
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Details of Directors seeking appointment / re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

(Pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges)

Name of Director Shri F. B. Virani Shri Kushal N. Desai Shri Rajesh Sehgal
Date of Birth 26.06.1945 21.02.1967 16.02.1971
Date of Appointment 27.07.2001 24.03.1999 27.06.2011
Expertise in specific Chemical Engineering Electrical Engineering Investment/

functional areas

Business Management

Quialifications

B.E.(Chem. Engg.)
M.S.(Chem. Engg.) (USA)
M.B.A. (USA)

B.Sc. (Hons.),
(Elect.Engg.), USA
B.S. in (Econ.) (Hons.),
Wharton, USA.

PGDBM, CFA.

List of other Companies in
which Directorship held as

1. Dyna Cybertech
Services Pvt. Ltd.

—

. Apar Masat Conductors Ltd.

1. HPL Additives Limited

2. Apar ChemateK Lubricants Ltd.
on 31.03.2011. 2. Uniflex Cables Ltd. 3. Apar Corporation Pvt. Ltd.
4. Apar Technologies Pvt. Ltd.
5. Scope Pvt. Ltd.
6. Catalis World Pvt. Ltd.
7. Uniflex Cables Ltd.
8. Marine Cables & Wires Pvt. Ltd.
9. Petroleum Specialities Pte. Ltd.,
Singapore
10. Quantum Apar Speciality Oils
Pty.Ltd., Australia
11. Apar Investment INC.
12. Apar Investment (Singapore)
Pte. Ltd.
13. Apar Technologies Pte. Ltd.,
Singapore
Chairman / Member of the | 1. Uniflex Cables Limited | 1. Uniflex Cables Limited 1. HPL Additives Limited
Committee of other Public - Audit Committee - Remuneration Committee - Audit Committee
Companies on which he is - Shareholders/Investors Grievance - Compensation
a Director as on Committee Committee
31.03.2011. - Sub-Committee
No. of Shares held in the 6,500 66,85,216 Nil
Company
Relationship between Nil Related to — Nil
directors inter se Dr. N. D. Desai, (Father) and

Shri C. N. Desai, (Brother)

6 | Apar Industries Limited



Directors’ report

To,
The Shareholders,

Your Directors have pleasure in submitting the 22nd Annual Report of the Company together with the audited annual accounts

showing the financial position of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2011.

1. A) Financial results

Particulars

2010-11

2009-10

2010-11

(Rs. in million)

2009-10

Sales turnover (after deduction of excise duty) 27,184.69 19,980.54 30,283.00 22,355.45
Other income 70.51 166.39 61.86 160.00
Profit for the year before interest, depreciation / amortisation,

taxation and exceptional items 1,701.65 1,385.11 1,878.25 1,532.76
Deducting there from:

- Depreciation / amortisation 137.09 118.79 205.16 185.13
- Interest -32.06 195.60 134.65 331.99
PROFIT BEFORE ADJUSTMENT OF EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS, TAXATION,

AND MINORITY INTEREST 1,596.62 1,070.72 1,538.44 1,015.64
Exceptional items 1.97 22.61 - 11.56
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION FOR THE YEAR 1,594.65 1,048.11 1,538.44 1,004.08
Deducting there from:

- Provision for taxation 536.12 186.74 578.03 223.86
Net profit for the year after taxation and before minority interest 1,058.53 861.37 960.41 780.22
Adjustment of :

- Minority interest (profit)/loss - - (7.15) 67.21
NET PROFIT AFTER TAXATION AND ABOVE ADJUSTMENTS 1,058.53 861.37 953.26 847.43
Extraordinary items — impairment loss on investments # = 555.54 - 603.08
Balance profit 1,058.53 305.83 953.26 244 .35
Add: Balance of profit brought forward from the previous year 1,027.96 998.17 948.63 980.32
Amount available for appropriations 2,086.49 1,304.00 1,901.89 1,224.67
Appropriations made by the Board of Directors

- General reserve 110.00 87.50 110.00 87.50
Dividends on equity shares

- Interim dividend at Rs 2.50 (25%) per share 80.84 - 80.84 -
- Income tax on Interim dividends 13.43 - 13.43 -
- Proposed dividend at Rs. 3.50 (35%) per share 125.90 161.68 125.90 161.68
- Income tax on dividends 20.91 26.86 20.91 26.86
Leaving balance of profit carried to balance sheet 1,735.41 1,027.96 1,550.81 948.63
Earnings per equity share (EPS)

- Basic and diluted before extraordinary items 32.74 26.64 29.48 26.21
- Basic and diluted after extraordinary items 32.74 9.46 29.48 7.56

*  Consolidated results include the results of —

a) Petroleum Specialities Pte. Ltd, Singapore (PSPL) and ## Poweroil Speciality Products FZE, Sharjah, wholly-owned

subsidiaries (WOS) of the Company;
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b) Uniflex Cables Ltd (UCL), a subsidiary company

a o

Apar ChemateK Lubricants Ltd., a joint venture company
) Marine Cables & Wires Private Limited (MCWPL), WOS of UCL and
) Quantum Apar Speciality Oils Pty. Ltd., subsidiary of PSPL

# Non-cash loss on impairment of equity investment in UCL & MCWPL

#+#Since Closed.

1. B) Financial positions of the Company after considering the effect of draft scheme of the amalgamation (DRS)

of UCL with the Company are as under. DRS has been submitted to BIFR for it's final approval. (refer para

3(c))

Particulars

Standalone

Pre-amalgamation

(as at 31st March, 2011)

Consolidated

(Rs. in million)

(as at 31st March, 2011)

Post-amalgamation | Pre-amalgamation | Post-amalgamation

Sales (net of excise duty) 27,184.69 29,206.24 30,283.00 30,283.00
Profit before tax 1,594.65 1,311.83 1,538.44 1,538.44
Profit after tax 1,058.53 1,174.23 953.26 1,351.78
Earnings per share 32.74 33.71 29.48 38.81
Share Capital 323.36 348.34 323.36 348.34
Reserve and Surplus 3,423.93 3,468.47 3,190.85 3,589.37

2. Dividend:

a. Your Company has paid an interim dividend @ Rs. 2.50
(25%) per share on 32,336,031 Equity Shares of the face value
of Rs. 10/- each, amounting to Rs. 80.84 Million for the
financial year 2010-2011.

The members are requested to confirm the above interim
dividend at the ensuing Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the
Company.

b. Final Dividend:

Considering the improved financial results achieved during the
year under review as compared to the previous year, the
Board of Directors has recommended the final dividend for
financial year 2010-11 on 35,972,394 Equity Shares of the
face value of Rs.10/-each fully paid @ Rs. 3.50 (35 %) per
share.

Total dividend for the financial year 2010-11 including interim
dividend already paid aggregating to Rs 6.00 (60%) per equity
share.

This final dividend amounting to Rs. 125.90 Million is payable
after declaration by shareholders at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting (AGM) and you are requested to declare the
same.

3. Management discussion and analysis/outlook
a) Industry structure, development, opportunities, threats,
outlook and risk and concerns

8 | Apar Industries Limited

The rapid economic growth in infrastructure in India has
witnessed noticeable and prominent growth in the power
sector. However, there is still a substantial gap between the
targets and achievements, primarily due to implementation
issues. The Eleventh Plan power generation achievement in
2010-11 was 12.2 GW which was approximately 60% of the
target. In order to improve the achievement in future years, a
number of strategic measures are being taken up — Ultra Mega
Power Projects (UMPP), unbundling of state utilities, power
trading exchanges, etc. To facilitate greater private sector
participation in transmission segment through the competitive
route, the Central Electricity Regulatory Commission has issued
regulations for grant of transmission licenses through
competitive bidding. Power Grid Corporation, the country’s
central transmission utility, has planned for Rs. 81000 crore in
2010 that will be laid over the next eight years to set up
transmission networks, including the evacuation of power
from upcoming projects in some neighboring countries. This is
in addition to the Rs. 55,000 crore that it would be investing
in the current five-year plan, ending 2012, to set up a national
grid of 37000 MW.

The Company’s Transformer Oil & Conductors divisions are
amongst the leaders in their respective fields, and are expected
to benefit significantly from the investments that are being
planned in the power sector.

Margins from the manufacturing activities during FY 2010-11



were

increased to Rs 1,701.65 million from Rs 1,385.11
million in the previous year. The segment-wise operations were

as under:
i) Transformer oil and specialty oils segment

This division contributed 51.2% of the Company’s revenue. Details
of Sales revenue and segment profit (standalone basis) are:

2010-11 2009-10 Variation
Turnover
KL # 2,59,344 | # 2,47,709 (+) 11,635 (4.7%)
Rs/million 13,950.77 | 10,251.52 | (+) 3,699.25 (36.1%)
Segment profit-
Rs/million 1,360.07 879.54 (+) 480.53 (54.6%)

# Includes conversion by the company on customers’ account.

The Qil business had a good performance during 2010-11
primarily on account of improved product mix. As the demand
for products with higher quality standards are gaining
popularity in the markets in which the company is operating, it
has been able to avail of the opportunities on the strength of
its technical expertise. The profitability has increased by about
55%.

The Company continues to exercise prudence in its choice of
business & inventory control in order to mitigate the risks
experienced in 2008-09. The Company has been concentrating
on higher value-added products and applications rather than
focus just on volume growth. As a result, growth in terms of
volume has been modest at approximately 5%.

The Company expects to sustain its leadership position in the
market for Transformer Qils, and increase its penetration in the
other segments. While the profitability in 2011-12 may be
reasonably good, it may not be as strong as the previous year
because of the expected volatility in the commodity markets.

The Net sales

Lubricants produced

turnover of the “Agip" brand Automotive
by the Company with License and
Technical Know-how of ENI-S.p.A of Italy and marketed by
Apar ChemateK Lubricants Ltd, (50:50 Joint Venture Company
with ChemateK SpA) (ACL) stood at Rs. 1,212.08 Million for
FY 11. ACL has earned a Profit of Rs. 44.61 Million during FY
2010-11 as against Profit of Rs. 49.98 Million in the previous
year. The sale of Agip brand products grew by 34.7% in
volume over the previous year.

Risk and concerns
The company is exposed to the volatility in the prices of its raw
materials & in foreign exchange rate. However, in order to

mitigate its risks, the Company continues to exercise prudence
in its inventory control & hedging strategies.

ii) Conductor division

Sales revenue in FY11 increased by 34.5% from Rs 9,857.98
million to Rs. 13,258.17 million on account of increase in
volume by 29.3% from 79510 MT to 102793 MT.

Segment Level profit for the year down from Rs. 601.03
Million to Rs. 467.63 Million.

During the year, Power Grid finalised much lower tenders for
conductors as compared to the past. The absence of this very
significant part of the market created intensified competition in
the rest of the business. Hence, margins were under pressure
for the Company, and the profits were reduced. The increase in
volumes helped in mitigating the impact of the margins’
reduction.

During the end of the year, Power Grid has started to finalise a
number of tenders, and the company has received some orders
for execution in the second half of FY 12.

The order book as of April 1, for FY12 was Rs. 12,598.10
million in confirmed orders and Rs. 5,607.50 million in the
pipeline. The Company will continue to experience reduced
margins for the first half of FY 12.

We expect total volume to grow by over 15% in FY12 over
FY11 with a corresponding increase in profitability for this
segment.

The Company followed a conservative hedging strategy both
on foreign exchange and metal front. All fixed price contracts
were hedged on a back to back basis. The mark to market
losses (MTM) on such contracts as of March 31, 2011 in
accordance with announcement dated March 28, 2008, issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, amounting
to Rs 280.40 million have not been provided in the accounts,
as it is notional in nature and said loss would get extinguished
on execution of firm sale price orders corresponding to these
commodity contracts.

Risk and concerns

There is continued volatility in the raw material prices and in
other input costs. The Company hedges the main raw materials
on the London Metal Exchange & the foreign exchange
exposure, in order to mitigate the risks of its operation.

b) Operations of subsidiary Uniflex Cables Ltd. (UCL) and
its wholly-owned subsidiary Marine Cables & Wires Private
Limited (MCWPL)
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The Profitability of the Cable business continued to be poor

because of the intensified competition in the industry. The
margins were at historically un-remunerative levels. The various
initiatives taken by the Company has enabled it to grow its
volume substantially relative to the general growth in the
Industry. This helped the Company to keep the losses at the
similar levels as the previous year.

Net sales for the financial year 2010-11 stood at Rs. 3,112.73
million as against Rs. 1,806.18 million in the previous financial
year 2009-10; increased by Rs. 1,306.55 Million (72.34%)
Net loss for the financial year 2010-11 stood at Rs. 282.53
Million (standalone) as against the loss in the previous financial
year 2009-10 of Rs. 274.58 Million.

The company has grown its higher margin business of special
rubber and communication cables from Rs. 521 Million to Rs.
841 Million. However, the gain from this has been offset with
a drop in margins in the high volume Power Cables segment,
and from higher interest cost of Rs. 154.49 Million compared
to Rs. 122.04 Million in the previous year.

In the FY 12, the Cable business is expected to improve in its
profitability on account of better product mix, and initiatives to
reduce its costs and further increase in volumes.

¢) Amalgamation of Uniflex Cables Ltd. (UCL) and Marine
Cables & Wires Pvt. Ltd. (MCWPL) with the Company with
transfer date 1st April, 2010.

Pursuant to the reference made in accordance with the
provisions of Sick Industrial Companies (Special Provisions) Act,
1985 (SICA) to the Board for Industrial & Financial Re-
construction (BIFR) by UCL, it has been declared as Sick
Industrial Company by BIFR vide its" order dated October 26,
2010 and directed UCL to file a fully tied up Draft
Rehabilitation Scheme (DRS) u/s 17(3) of SICA for it's revival to
Syndicate Bank who has been appointed as Operating Agency
(OA) to examine the DRS. After having preliminary discussion
with the management of the Company, UCL has submitted
DRS to OA which include amalgamation of the UCL with the
company with cut off date as 31st March, 2010 for expeditious
revival. The Scheme also provides for exchange of one equity
share of the face value of Rs. 10 each of the Company for ten
equity shares of Rs 10 each of UCL.

After holding Joint Meeting of all the concerned parties by OA,
it has submitted its’ report on above DRS to BIFR on March 18,
2011. The shareholders of the Company have approved the
above DRS and also the exchange ratio subject to the final
approval of the BIFR which is awaited.

10 | Apar Industries Limited

During the year ended March 31, 2011, MCWPL incurred loss
of Rs. 10.91 million (after tax) as against profit of Rs. 6.03
million in the previous year. As directed by BIFR, MCWPL has
submitted Draft Rehabilitation Scheme (DRS) which include
amalgamation of the MCWPL with the company with cut off
date as 31st March, 2010 to BIFR in July, 10. BIFR has
appointed Syndicate Bank as Operating Agency (OA) to
examine the DRS and submit its’ report to BIFR. The OA report
in this regard is awaited.

d) Cautionary statement

The statements made in the management discussion & analysis
section, describing the Company’s goals, expectations, or
predictions etc. do contain some forward looking views of the
management. The actual performance of the Company is
dependent on several external factors many of which, are
beyond the control of the management viz. growth of Indian
economy, continuation of industrial reforms, fluctuations in
value of Rupee in foreign exchange market, volatility in
commodity prices, applicable laws/ regulations, tax structure,
movement in

domestic/international industry scenario,

international prices of raw materials and economic

developments within the country etc.

e) Internal control systems (ICS) and their adequacy

The Company established adequate ICS in respect of all the
divisions of the Company. The ICS are aimed at promoting
operational efficiencies and achieving saving in cost and
overheads in all business operations. The System Application
and Product (SAP), a world class business process integration
software solution which was implemented by the Company at
all business units has been operating successfully.

For tightening and more effective internal control systems and
risk management the Company continued the engagement of
M/s. KPMG India Pvt. Ltd., Chartered Accountants as internal
auditors of the Company.

The system cum internal audit reports of the internal auditors
are discussed at the Audit Committee meetings and
appropriate corrective steps have been taken.

Further, all business segment prepare their annual budget,
which are reviewed along with performance at regular interval.

f) Development of human resources

The Company promotes open and transparent working
environment to enhance teamwork and build business focus.
The Company equally gives importance to the development of
human resource (HR). It updates its HR policy in line with the



changing HR culture in the industry as a whole. In order to

foster excellence and reward those employees who perform
well, the Company practices performance/production linked
incentive schemes and introduced Employees Stock Option
Scheme referred to in para 8 (a)(i) and as detailed in an
attachment to this report. The main object of the Scheme is to
create and maintain optimum performance level and profit
driven culture and improve productivity.

The Company also takes adequate steps for in-house training
of employees and maintaining safety and healthy environment
for workers working within the factory premises.

4. Issue of Further Shares

During the year under review, the Board of Directors at its
meeting held on 30th March, 2011, approved the issue of
3,636,363 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each at a Premium of Rs.
210/- per share to Templeton Strategic Emerging Markets Fund
lll, L.D.C., Cayman Islands (Templeton), a Foreign investor, on
Preferential Allotment basis and Shareholders of the Company
at their Extra-Ordinary General Meeting (EGM) held on 29th
April, 2011 approved the above issue in terms of provisions of
Section 81(1A) of the Companies Act, 1956 by passing a
Special Resolution to that effect.

The Committee of Board of Directors at its meeting held on 4th
May, 2011, upon receipt of the full subscription amount
approved the allotment of the said 3,636,363 Equity Shares of
Rs. 10/- each at a Premium of Rs. 210/- per share to Templeton
and consequently Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Equity Share
Capital of the Company have increased to Rs. 359,723,940/-
divided into 35,972,394 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully
paid.

5. Directors

a) Mr. Rajesh Sehgal was appointed as an Additional Director
of the Company w.e.f. June 27, 2011. He has been nominated
as a Director in the capacity of an Investor Director by
Templeton, in terms of the provisions of the Subscription and
Investor Rights Agreement entered into between the Company
and Templeton, the allottee of 3,636,363 Equity Shares of Rs.
10/- each. In pursuance of the provisions of Section 260 of the
Companies Act, 1956, Mr. Sehgal will hold office as director
upto the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting. The
Company has received a Notice under Section 257 of the
Companies Act, 1956, proposing his candidature as Director,
not liable to retire by rotation. The Board recommends his
appointment.

b) Mr. F. B. Virani and Mr. Kushal N. Desai, Directors shall
retire by rotation at the ensuing annual general meeting of the
Company and they, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment. The Board recommends the re-appointment of
these Directors.

6. Directors’ responsibility statement

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 217(2AA) of the
Companies Act, 1956 with regard to directors’ responsibility
statement, it is hereby confirmed that-

i. In the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial
year ended March 31, 2011, the applicable accounting
standards were followed along with proper explanation
relating to material departures, if any.

ii. Appropriate accounting policies were selected and applied
consistently and judgments and estimates were made that
were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the
financial year and of the profit of the Company for the financial

year under review.

iii. Proper and sufficient care was taken for the maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud
and other irregularities.

iv. The annual accounts were prepared on a going concern
basis.

7. Audit

The qualification in paragraph 2(f) of attached Auditors’ Report
are self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments
or explanations. In this regard, attention is also invited to
paragraph 3 (a) (i) of this Report.

M/s. Sharp & Tannan, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai,
Statutory Auditors of the Company shall be retiring at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting, and they being eligible, offer
themselves for reappointment. The Audit Committee of
on 27th May, 2011
recommended reappointment of M/s. Sharp & Tannan as

Directors at its meeting held

Statutory Auditors of the Company for the financial year
2011-12.

8. Other information
a. Attached to and forming part of this report are the following:

i) Particulars relating to Employee Stock Option Scheme.
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ii) Particulars of Information as per Section 217(2A) of the

Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies (Particulars of
Employees) Rules, 1975

iii) Particulars relating to conservation of energy, technology
absorption, research & development and foreign exchange
earnings and outgo.

iv) Report on Corporate Governance and auditors’ certificate
regarding compliance of conditions of corporate governance.
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has issued “Corporate
Governance Voluntary Guidelines” in December 2009. While
these guidelines are recommendatory in nature, the Company
is in the process of adopting these guideline gradually.

v) Statement containing brief financial details of the
subsidiaries.

b. Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide its letter dated February
14, 2011 has informed the Company that vide its General
Circular dated February 8, 2011, Companies have been
granted exemption under Section 212 (8) of the Companies
Act, 1956. In accordance with Circular, the Company has not
attached the Balance Sheet, Profit & Loss Accounts and other
documents of its wholly-owned foreign subsidiaries viz.
Petroleum Specialities Pte. Ltd., Singapore as well as its
subsidiary Quantum Apar Speciality Oils Pty. Ltd., Australia and

Poweroil Speciality Products FZE, Sharjah, Uniflex Cables
Limited (UCL), subsidiary of the Company and Marine Cables &
Wires Private Limited, wholly-owned subsidiary of UCL. As per
the terms of circular, a statement containing brief financial
details of the said subsidiaries for the year ended March 31,
2011 are included in the annual report and shall form part of
this report. The annual accounts of the said subsidiaries and
the related information will be made available to any member
of the Company seeking such information at any point of time
and are also available for inspection by any member of the
Company at the registered office of the Company.

c. As on March 31, 2011 the aggregate fixed deposits of
Rs. 0.059 million were due for repayment but remained
unclaimed. Letters have been sent to such depositor to claim
the amounts due to them.

9. Acknowledgement

Your Directors wish to place on record their sincere
appreciation for continuous cooperation, support and
assistance provided by stakeholders, financial institutions,
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Place: Mumbai
Date: 27th June, 2011
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Annexure | to the Directors' Report
EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION

Members’ approval was obtained at the Annual General

Meeting held on August 9, 2007 for introduction of Employees
Stock Option Scheme to issue and grant upto 16,16,802
options and it was implemented by the Company. The options
have been granted to employees in accordance with the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employees Stock

Option Scheme and Employees Stock Purchase Scheme)
Guidelines, 1999 (the SEBI Guidelines). The Employees Stock
Compensation Committee, constituted in accordance with the
SEBI Guidelines, administers and monitors the Scheme.

The disclosures stipulated under the SEBI Guidelines are given

below :
a. Options granted by the Compensation Committee 175,150
b. Exercise price Rs. 207.05 per option
c. Options vested 116,766
d. Options exercised Nil
e. The total number of shares arising as a result of exercise of options : Nil
f.  Options lapsed Nil
g. Variation in terms of options See note 1 below
h. Money realised by exercise of options Nil
i. Total number of options in force 175,150
j. Employee-wise details of options granted to:
i. Senior Management Personnel / Directors
(@) Mr. H N Shah 7,500
(b) Mr. V A Gore* 4,000
(c) Dr. N K Thingalaya 4,000
(d) Mr. F.B.Virani 4,000
ii. Any other employee who received a grant in any one year of options amounting : Nil
to 5% or more of options granted during that year
iii. Identified employees who were granted options, during any one year, equal to or : Nil
exceeding 1% of the issued capital (excluding outstanding warrants and
conversions) of the Company at the time of grant
k. Diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS) pursuant to issue of shares on exercise of options Rs. 32.74

calculated in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS) 20 Earnings Per Share

Notes:

1) 175,150 options at the exercise price of Rs. 259.75 granted
on January 23, 2008 were cancelled on May 27, 2008. The
cancellation was necessary due to substantial reduction in
the price of shares in the secondary market and
simultaneously therewith the above detailed options were
granted. The confirmation of the shareholders for the said
cancellation and subsequent grant was sought at the 19th
Annual General Meeting held on August 29, 2008.

2) As the exercise of options would be made at the market

linked price of Rs. 207.05, the issuance of equity shares
pursuant to exercise of options will not affect the profit and
loss account of the Company.

3) The Company obtained in-principle approval for the listing
of the entire 1,616,802 equity shares to be issued and
allotted on exercise of options as and when exercised under
the scheme.

4) *Mr. V. A. Gore expired on December 2, 2009. Options
granted to him would vest with his legal heirs / beneficiary.
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Annexure |l to the Directors' Report

Information pursuant to Section 217 (2A) of the Companies Act, 1956, read with the Companies (Particulars of Employees)
Rules, 1975 and forming part of the Directors' Report for the year ended 31st March, 2011.

Age |Designation/| Qualifications |Experience |Remuneration Date of Last
(Years)| Nature of (Years) Commencement| Employment
Duty of and
Employment Designation
Mr. Kushal 44 Managing B.Sc. (Hons.), 22 19,018,464 24.03.1999 GE Lighting
N. Desai Director (Ele.Engg.) US.A., (India) Ltd.
B.S.Eco. (Hons) President
(Wharton) U.S.A.
Mr. C. N. Desai| 39 Joint B.Sc. (Hons.), 17 19,108,809 29.05.1993 -
Managing |(Chem.Engg.) U.S.A,,
Director B.S.Eco. (Hons)
(Wharton) U.S.A.

Notes :

1. The Remuneration includes salary, allowances, commission paid to Directors, reimbursement of leave travel and medical
expenses / benefits, company's contribution to provident fund, leave encashment and other perquisites in respect of motor car,

accomodation, telephone etc.

2. Above directors are related to each other. None of the employees of the Company is related to any of the Directors.

3. All appointments are contractual and terminable by notice on either side.

Annexure |ll to the Directors' Report

ENERGY STATEMENT

INFORMATION AS PER SECTION 217(1)(e) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956 READ WITH THE
COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS IN THE REPORT OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS) RULES,
1988 AND FORMING PART OF THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH,

2011.

I. Conservation of Energy

1) Energy Conservation measures taken and
continuing on regular basis:

Conductor Division:

i) Installation of some variable speed drives on machines.

ii) Replacement of DC Tension System for take up to A.C.
Tension system on machines.

iii) Installation of energy efficient MHT light fixtures.

iv) Replaced 20 numbers CFL Energy Efficient Lights 45 watt in
place of 150 watt HPSV & 125 watt HPMV Lights.
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v) Replaced 5 numbers 250 watt flood lights with 150 watt
flood lights in dispatch area with same lumens.

Oil Division:

i) Installed six numbers power saving device for Air
Conditioners.

i) Replaced the inefficient higher capacity motors with high
efficient motors in the plant.

iii) Replaced the inefficient 250 watt HPSV light fittings by
96 watt/72 watt CFL light fittings in the plant with same
lumens output.



iv) Commissioned process air header in front of boiler house

with different lines to different plants also provided 3H.P.
motor with air-compressor in ETP plant separately. This is
done to reduce the running of 60H.P. motors.

v) Maintained power factor above 0.95 throughout the year,

and received incentives in MSEDCL bill.

i) Recovered steam condensate.

) Additional Investment proposals, if any, being
implemented for reduction of consumption of
energy:

Investment proposed for power conservation through VFD
panel installations.

ii) 20 numbers of solar street light to be provided along the

boundary wall where light consumption is more.

) Dusk to dawn controller to be provided for indoor plant
lighting for its automatic operation under controlled
settings.

) Installation of 5 numbers power saving devices for Air
conditioners.

v) 1 number Eddy current motor 11KW in heavy rewinding to

Vi)

be replaced by VFD.

6 numbers wind turbines ventilator to be installed in the
Silvassa Oil Plant.

vii) Replacement of 250 watt HPSV Light fitting by 4x 24 watt

(96 watt) T5 Light fitting to reduce the lighting load by
3.0KW.

viii) Installation of 12 numbers power saving device for the Air

3)

conditioners, which would save electricity by
40,435KWH/year & annual savings will be Rs. 1,81,950/-
approximately.

Impact of measures at (1) and (2) above:
Electrical energy savings.
Less failure of equipments/motors.

More up time resulting into more productivity.

4) Total Energy Consumption and Energy Consumption per unit of production:

(A) Power and Fuel Consumption

(i) Electricity
(a) Purchased units 22,239,364 19,305,625
Total Amount (Rs./million) 86.92 81.51
Rate/Unit (Rs.) 3.91 4.22
(b) Own Generation
Through Diesel Generator (Units) 703,643 883,759
Average Units generated per liter of diesel oil 3.09 3.14
Average Cost of Unit (Rs.) 12.01 10.55
(ii) Furnace Oil:
Quantity (KI.) 7,596 6,866
Total Amount (Rs./million) 204.69 155.98
Average Rate/KI.(Rs.) 26,948 22,720
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(B) Consumption per unit of production (Average per unit consumption on total production of each division is

2010-11 2009-10

included in the table below):

Electricity
(Units)

(i) Refinery Division :

Furnace Oil
(litres)

Furnace Oil
(litres)

Electricity
(Units)

Per KL output of Qil 10.18 1.78 11.13 1.86
(ii) Properzi and AAC/ACSR/AAAC

Conductors Division :

Per MT output of Aluminum/Alloy 200 70 214 79

Conductors

Reasons for change in consumption:

Electricity . Ol Change in Product mix
Conductors Change in product mix
Furnace Oil & LDO . Oil Change in Product mix
Conductors Change in product mix

Il. Technology Absorption and Research &
Development:

1. Research and Development (R&D):
i) Specific areas in which R & D is carried out by the
Company:

— Development & commercialisation of new types of up-
rating Conductors, with utility in re-conductoring with
enhanced power transmission capacity. Al-59, TAL developed
and has been commercially produced. ACSS is developed but
commercially yet to be produced.

— Company’s In-house R&D OQil unit at Rabale, Navi Mumbai
has been granted registration with the Department of Scientific
& Industrial Research (DSIR), Government of India, Ministry of
Science and Technology for the purposes of availing customs
duty and central excise exemption & granted re-registration
with NABL.

— The Company has strengthened a Six Sigma, a business
management strategy using DMAIC approach in various
sections of Speciality Oils division at Rabale resulting in
improvement in the process efficiency, productivity and energy
conservation.

ii) A) Benefits derived as a result of the R&D:

a) Large scale commercial production has

commenced.

b) Value addition has increased due to better product
mix.

c) New Customer requirements have been satisfied
with newly developed products .

B) Benefits derived from Six Sigma

— Process efficiency, Productivity improvement,

Energy Conservation, Process capability and

Reduction in variation leading to Cost effectiveness.

iii) Future plan of action:
a) Commercialisation & expansion of R&D facility at
Rabale. NABL accreditation at Silvassa Oil Labaroatoy,

b) Development of new types of Conductors such as STAL
and Trapazodal conductor such as ACSS/TW and
ACCC/HVCRC in current financial year.

c) Creating and developing a technical team for
conductor stringing solutions for newly up-rated
developed conductors and for this, additional tests
facilities will also to be created for measurement of
Trapezoidal wires.

16 | Apar Industries Limited



iv) Expenditure on R&D

m Particulars

(Rs.)

2010-11 2009-10

(A) Salary, wages and other benefits 6,161,550 3,873,331
Consumables and chemicals 2,789,031 596,571
Sub-Total 8,950,581 4,469,902

(B) Capital expenditure 5,865,095 11,564,360
Total (A+B) 14,815,677 16,034,262

. Technology Absorption, Adaptation and

c) Has technology been fully absorbed

Innovation: Yes.

a) Technology Imported (in last five years) lll.Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:

1) Activities related to exports:
Efforts are continuing to increase exports of all products.

License to use proprietary knowhow, formulae, trademarks
and trade names relating to manufacture & sale of
lubricating Oils, Greases and other special Lubricants for
industrial, automotive and marine applications.

b) Year of Import

2007
2. Total Foreign Exchange used and earned (Rs. in million)
1 S N
(i) Total foreign exchange used:
(a) Raw Materials (CIF) 12,363.03 9,694.13
(b) Stores & Spares 2.12 3.56
(c) Capital Goods 11.07 20.11
(d) Others 231.21 343.91
12,607.43 10,061.71
(ii) Total foreign exchange earned:
(a) Physical Exports (FOB) 5,451.81 5,022.53
(b) Deemed Exports (eligible for export incentives) 696.36 861.68
(c) Others 298.84 271.69
6,447.01 6,155.90
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Corporate Governance Report

Corporate Governance Philosophy
Apar Limited (“the Company”)
conducting its affairs in a fair, transparent and professional

Industries believes in
manner and maintaining the good ethical standards in its
dealings with all its constituents.

The Company is committed to follow good Corporate
Governance practices, which include having professional
Directors on the Board, adopting pragmatic policies and
effective systems and procedures and subjecting business
processes to audits and checks, compliant with the required
standards.

The driving force behind the Company’s management is
“Tomorrow's Progress Today” and backed by “A culture of
High - Tech Practices and Quality”. Apar’s quality policy for
ISO-9001 is “To satisfy customer needs and retain
leadership by manufacturing and supplying quality
products and services through continuous improvement by
motivated employees”.

The policies and actions of the Company are in line with the
applicable guidelines on Corporate Governance with an
endeavour to enhance shareholders’ value. Pursuant to Clause
49 of the Listing Agreement of Stock Exchanges, the following
details are presented:

Board Of Directors

1. The Board of Directors is the apex body constituted by the
shareholders for overseeing the overall functioning of the
Company. The Board provides and evaluates the strategic
direction of the Company, management policies and their
effectiveness and ensures that the long-term interests of the
shareholders are being served. The Board of Directors has more
than 50% Non-executive Directors and the Chairman, being
Non-Executive Director and Promoter, half of the total number
of directors are independent directors. None of the directors
on the Board is @ member on more than 10 Committees and
Chairman of more than 5 Committees as specified in Clause 49
across all companies in which he is a director. All the members
of the Board are eminent persons with excellent qualifications;
professional expertise and extensive experience and they have
made outstanding contributions to the industry.

2. The Board of Directors meets at least four times a year with
maximum time gap of 4 months between any two meetings to
review the Company’s performance and financial results, and
more often, if considered necessary.

3. The composition of the Board of Directors and details with
regard to them is as follows as on 31st March, 2011:

Name of Directors | Category

in other public

No. of
Directorships

No. of Committee | No. of Committee

Memberships Chairmanships

in other public in other public

Dr. N. D. Desai Chairman (Non- Executive)

Dr. N.K.Thingalaya Non-Executive & Independent

Mr. F. B. Virani Non-Executive & Independent

Mr. Kushal N. Desai | Managing Director

Mr. C. N. Desai Joint Managing Director

Mr. H. N. Shah Non-Executive & Independent#

Companies.* Companies Companies
2 _ _
2 2 2
1 1 -
3 4 2
3 5 -
1 4 2

* The directorships held by Directors as mentioned above do not include alternate directorships and directorships of foreign

companies and deemed public companies, Section 25 Companies and private limited companies.

# As legally advised.

No Director is related to any other Director on the Board in terms of the definition of “relative” given under the Companies Act,
1956 except Mr. Kushal N. Desai and Mr. Chaitanya N. Desai who are brothers and Dr. N. D. Desai who is their father.
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4. During the financial year 2010-2011, seven Board Meetings

were held. The dates on which the Board meetings were held
are as follows:

25th May, 2010, 2nd August, 2010, 3rd September, 2010,
25th October, 2010, 24th November, 2010, 2nd February,
2011 and 30th March, 2011.

General Meetings

The last Annual General Meeting (21st AGM) was held on 2nd
August, 2010 at 2.30 P.M. at Auditorium of the Vanijya
Bhavan, Central Gujarat Chamber of Commerce, Near GEB
Head Office, Race Course, Vadodara — 390 007.

Following are the details of attendance of Directors at the
aforesaid Board Meetings and AGM held during the financial
year.

Name of Directors

No. of Board meetings held during

the tenure of the Directors

Dr. N.D. Desai 7
Dr. N. K. Thingalaya 7
Mr. F. B. Virani 7
Mr. Kushal N. Desai 7
Mr. C. N. Desai 7
Mr. H. N. Shah 7

No. of Board Last AGM
meetings attended attended

7 Yes

6 Yes

6 Yes

6 Yes

7 Yes

6 Yes

Audit Committee

1. The Company has constituted an Audit Committee of
Directors in accordance with the requirements of Section 292A
of the Companies Act, 1956 read with Clause 49 of the Listing
Agreement. The Audit Committee consists of three
independent Directors. The broad terms of reference of the
Audit Committee include, reviewing with the management,
the quarterly and annual financial results / statements,

adequacy of internal control systems and internal audit

functions, overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process, recommending the appointment and removal of
external and internal auditors, etc.

2. The composition of the Audit Committee and attendance of
Directors at the meetings are given hereunder:

During the financial year 2010-11, the Audit Committee met
on 25th May, 2010, 2nd August, 2010, 3rd September, 2010,
25th October, 2010 and 2nd February, 2011.

Name of Directors Category

No. of meetings held during

No. of meetings

Dr. N. K. Thingalaya Independent & Non-Executive

Mr. F. B. Virani Independent & Non-Executive

Mr. H. N. Shah Independent & Non-Executive

the tenure of Director attended
5 5
5 4
5 5

Compensation-Cum-Remuneration Committee
Composition: The Compensation — cum - Remuneration
Committee of the Board comprises of five directors, namely,
Dr.N.K.Tingalaya- Chairman, Shri H.N.Shah, Shri F.B.Virani, Shri
C.N.Desai, Shri K.N.Desai.

Term of Reference: The Broad terms of reference of the
Compensation-cum-Remuneration Committee include, over
and above the administration and other related matters of

Employee stock option Plan, the approval of remuneration
payable to managerial persons in accordance with the
provisions of Part Il and Section Il of Schedule XIlI of the
Companies Act, 1956 and under any other law.

During the Financial year 2010-11 Compensation — Cum -
Remuneration Committee meeting was held on 2nd February,
2011.
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Name of Directors Category No. of meetings held No. of
during the tenure of Director meetings attended

Dr. N. K. Thingalaya Independent & Non-Executive
Mr. H.N.Shah Independent & Non-Executive
Mr. F.B.Virani Independent & Non-Executive
Mr. C. N. Desai Executive Director
Mr. K.N.Desai Executive Director

Remuneration policy, details of remuneration and other
terms of appointment of Director:

The remuneration policy of the company is directed towards
rewarding performance, based on review of achievements on a
periodical basis.

The remuneration policy is in consonance with the existing
Industry practice.

Details of remuneration paid to all the Directors:
1. The non-executive directors receive the sitting fees for

attending the Board and Committee meetings, as the case may
be.

2. The break up of remuneration paid / payable to the
Managing Directors for the financial year 2010-2011 is as
under:

Mr. Kushal N. Desai Mr. C. N. Desai

Position Managing Director

Salary (Rs.) 2,948,245

Commission (Rs.) 13,746,510

Perquisites / Allowances (Rs.) 2,323,709

Total (Rs.) 19,018,464

Stock Option Granted (Nos.) Nil

Service Contract 5 years from 01/01/2007 to 31/12/2011
Notice Period 1 Month

Joint Managing Director
2,942,193

13,746,509

2,420,107

19,108,809

Nil

5 years from 01/01/2007 to 31/12/2011

1 Month

3. In terms of Section 309(1) of the Companies Act, 1956,
Dr. N. D. Desai, a Non-Executive Chairman has been paid Rs.
4,791,176/- including monetary value of facilities during the
period from 1st April, 2010 to 31st March, 2011 for his
professional services to the Company towards his fees and Rs.
13,746,509 as commission.

4. In terms of Section 309(1) of the Companies Act, 1956, Shri
H. N. Shah, a Non-executive Professional Director has been
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paid for his professional services to the Company
Rs. 2,409,813/ towards his fees including monetary value of
facilities during the period from 1st April, 2010 to 31st March,

2011.

The professional fees of above two directors have been fixed by
the Board after considering their professional expertise and
experience in the respective fields, loyalty and professional fees
structure prevalent in the industry.



5. Remuneration paid to Non-Executive Directors for attending the meetings of Board of Directors and Committees is as given below :

No. of Equity Shares

No. of Stock Options

Name of Directors Sitting Fees
(Rs.)

Dr. N. D. Desai 1,37,500

Dr. N. K.Thingalaya 1,05,000

Mr. F. B. Virani 97,500

Mr. H. N. Shah 1,80,000

held in the Company granted
69,30,692* Nil
- 4,000
6,500 4,000
2,960 7,500

* Includes shares held as Trustee

Share Transfer & Shareholders’ Grievance
Committee

1. The Board of Directors of the Company has constituted
Share Transfer & Shareholders’ Grievance Committee of
Directors in order to meet the requirement of Clause 49 of the
Listing Agreements of the stock exchanges. This Committee

has been constituted with the objective of overseeing redressal

of investors’ complaints pertaining to transfers / transmission
of shares, issue of duplicate share certificates, non-receipt of
dividend / interest, dematerialisation (Demat) of shares and all
other related matters concerning investors.

2. Share Transfer & Shareholders’ Grievance Committee met
three times during the financial year, i.e. on 25th May, 2010,
3rd September, 2010 and 2nd February, 2011.

The composition of Committee and attendance of Directors at these meetings are given below :

Name of Directors Category No. of meetings held No. of meetings
attended by directors

Dr. N. D. Desai, Chairman Non- Executive Director

Shri C. N. Desai Executive Director

Shri H.N.Shah

Independent & Non- Executive

Share Transfer System

1. The Board of Directors has delegated the power of approval
of share transfers to the Company Secretary and Deputy
Secretary of the Company jointly, who approve the share
transfers regularly on fortnight basis, and gist of transfers are
placed before the Share Transfer & Shareholders’ Grievance
Committee, periodically.

Compliance Officer :

Mr. Sanjaya Kunder, Company Secretary,
Apar Industries Limited,

Apar House, Corporate Park,

Sion-Trombay Road, Chembur, Mumbai — 400 071.

2. Status of complaints for the period 1st April, 2010 to
31st March, 2011.

1. No. of complaints received 3

2. No. of complaints resolved 3

3. No. of complaints not solved to the satisfaction
of the investors as at 31st March, 2011. Nil

4. Complaints pending as at 31st March, 2011. Nil

5. No. of share transfers pending for approval
as at 31st March, 2011. Nil

Risk Assessment & Minimisation Procedure :

The Company has laid down procedure to inform the Members
of the Board about the risk assessment and minimisation
procedure. These procedures are periodically placed and are
reviewed by the Board of Directors.

Auditors’ Certificate on Corporate Governance

The Company has obtained a Certificate from the Auditors of
the Company regarding compliance with the provisions
relating to Corporate Governance prescribed by Clause 49 of
the Listing Agreement with Stock Exchanges, which is attached
herewith.
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Disclosures
a) General Body Meeting :

The details of last three Annual General Meetings (AGM) of shareholders of the Company held are as under :

Annual General Meetings (AGM):

m Date & Time Details of Special Resolutions

21st | 2nd August, 2010
at 2.30 P.M.

20th | 4th September, 2009

at 11.00 A.M.

19th | 29th August, 2008
at 11.00 A.M.

The Auditorium, Vanijya Bhavan,
Central Gujarat Chamber of Commerce,
Race Course Circle, Vadodara — 390 007.

The Auditorium, Vanijya Bhavan,
Central Gujarat Chamber of Commerce,
Race Course Circle, Vadodara — 390 007.

The Auditorium, Vanijya Bhavan,
Central Gujarat Chamber of Commerce,
Race Course Circle, Vadodara — 390 007.

Approval by the Shareholders of the Company to
the issue of securities for a value of upto Rs.125
Crores in one or more tranches through a public
issue and /or a private placement basis and / or
Qualified Institutional Placement within the
meaning of Chapter VIII of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations and / or preferential issue and /or any
other kind of public issue and/or private placement
as may be permitted under applicable law from
time to time.

No Special Resolution.

Cancellation of 175,150 options granted at the
Exercise Price of Rs. 259.75 per option and issue of
fresh 175,150 options (in lieu of the cancelled
options) at the new Exercise Price of Rs. 207.05 per
option.

b) Related Party transactions :

The details of all significant transactions with related parties
are periodically placed before the Audit Committee. The
relevant details of all transactions with related parties given in
Note No. 17 of Schedule No. 22 of the audited Accounts for
the financial year 2010-2011, form a part of this report also.
There are no materially significant related party transactions of
the Company which have potential conflict with the interests
of the Company at large.

c¢) The Company has complied with the requirements of
regulatory authorities on capital markets and no penalties or
strictures have been imposed on it during the last 3 years.

d) The statutory financial statements of the Company are
qualified.

e) Means of Communication :

Quarterly / Half Yearly / Yearly Financial Results: Generally
published in Gujarat edition of “The Business Standard”,
English daily newspaper and “Loksatta” - Gujarati daily
newspaper. Financial Results of the Company are displayed on
the Company’s website: www.apar.com
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f) Management Discussion & Analysis is covered under the
separate head of the Directors’ Report of 2010-2011.

g) The Company has complied with mandatory requirement of
Corporate Governance provisions and has not adopted non-
mandatory requirements except that the Non-executive
Chairman is entitled to maintain Chairman’s Office at
Company'’s expense and allowed re-imbursement of expenses
incurred in performance of his duties.

h) Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit (RSCA):

A qualified Practicing Company Secretary carried out on
quarterly basis, a Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit (RSCA)
to reconcile the total dematted Share Capital with National
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository
Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and physical share capital with
the total issued and listed share capital. The RSCA Report
confirms that the total issued / paid up capital is in agreement
with the total number of shares in physical form and the total
number of dematerialised shares held with NSDL and CDSL.



General Information :

1. Annual General Meeting
Day, Date and Time

Wednesday, 24th August, 2011 at 10:30 A.M. at The Auditorium,
Vanijya Bhavan, Central Gujarat Chamber of Commerce, Race Course
Circle, Vadodara 390007.

2. Financial Calendar for 2010-11
Financial year ending

First Quarter Results (June, 2011)

Half Yearly Results (September, 2011)
Third Quarter Results (December, 2011)
Approval of Annual Accounts (2011-12)

31st March

On or before 14th August, 2011.
On or before 14th November, 2011.
On or before 14th February, 2012.
On or before 30th May, 2012 .

3. Book Closure Dates

Wednesday, August 17, 2011 to Wednesday, August 24, 2011.
(both days inclusive)

4. Dividend Payment

Dividend Warrants will be dispatched after the AGM, but before the
expiry of statutory period of 30 days from the date of the AGM.

5. Registered Office

301, Panorama Complex, R. C. Dutt Road, Vadodara 390 007.

6. Listing of Shares on the Stock Exchanges

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on —

Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, Mumbai
(BSE) - Scrip Code No. 532259
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Fort, Mumbai — 400 001.

National Stock Exchange of India Limited
(NSE) - Scrip Code - APARINDS, “Exchange Plaza”,
Bandra- Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai-400 051.

The Company has paid due listing fees of both the Stock Exchanges.

7. Stock Price Data for the financial year April, 2010 to March, 2011 prevailed at the Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd.
(BSE) and The National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. (NSE):

Month High (Rs.) | Low (Rs.) | Monthly Volume High (Rs.) Low (Rs.) | Monthly Volume

2010 | April 284.00 189.20 28,15,263 282.70 196.20 40,18,602
May 250.00 223.20 2,58,738 250.00 218.00 3,89,076
June 241.00 221.00 1,88,886 243.10 220.00 2,76,585
July 246.50 217.00 3,76,768 258.80 207.20 5,26,108
August 231.70 193.50 2,03,154 233.00 193.25 3,08,408
September 211.00 186.50 4,76,996 208.90 175.20 5,51,983
October 251.75 190.00 11,90,009 251.80 185.10 16,07,239
November 251.00 215.00 4,84,205 249.40 222.70 19,13,551
December 248.90 192.00 2,35,895 247.50 205.35 4,97,409
2011 | January 244.80 205.15 1,17,160 254.00 202.05 2,31,685
February 214.00 169.25 1,45,757 214.90 166.60 5,22,846
March 234.80 180.50 3,28,445 234.90 181.00 6,62,923
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8. Stock Performance :

The performance / movement of price of the Company’s Equity Share as compared to BSE Sensitive Index is given in the chart

below :
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9. Registrar for Share Transfer and Depository

Colony,

B/H. Standard Chartered Bank, Alkapuri, Vadodara — 390 007.
Ph. Nos. (0265) 2339397, 2350490 ¢ Fax No. (0265) 2341639

E-mail: mcsltdbaroda@yahoo.com

10. Distribution of Shareholding as at 31st March, 2011 :

Range of

Equity Shares

1 —
501 -
1001 -
2001 -
3001 -
4001 -
5001 -
10001 -
50001 -
And Above

Total

500
1000
2000
3000
4000
5000
10000
50000
100000

No. of Equity
Shareholders

17,683
441
278

72
45
36
63
35

7
15

18,675

% of Equity
Shareholders

94.69
2.36
1.49
0.38
0.24
0.19
0.34
0.19
0.04
0.08

100.00

No. of Equity
Shares held

1,037,824
333,661
400,357
187,011
159,861
169,764
462,661
642,307
603,623

28,338,962

32,336,031

% of
Shareholding

3.21
1.03
1.24
0.58
0.49
0.52
1.43
1.99
1.87
87.64

100.00
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11. Shareholding Pattern as at 31st March, 2011:

Category

Promoters / Persons Acting in concert

Banks, Financial Institutions and Insurance Companies
Mutual funds

Foreign Institutional Investors

NRIs / OCBs

Corporate Bodies

Resident Individuals

Foreign Investors (Shinny Limited, Mauritius — CLSA Group)
Total

No. of Equity Shares held % Holding
20,336,896 62.89

1,149 0.00

3,185,404 9.85

2,055,595 6.35

221,975 0.69

812,329 2.51

3,087,545 9.56

2,635,138 8.15

32,336,031 100.00

12. Dematerialisation of Shares & Liquidity :

As at 31st March, 2011 approx. 99.23 % of total Equity Share
Capital is held in electronic form with National Securities
Depository Ltd. (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India)
Ltd. (CDSL). The Company’'s equity shares are compulsorily
traded in the electronic form at the Stock Exchanges. Requests
for dematerialisation of shares are processed and confirmed to

NSDL or CDSL by the Registrar, MCS Limited. The Equity Share
ISIN No. is INE372A01015.

13. Employee Stock Options :

A total of 1,75,150 Options have been granted. Each Option,
upon exercise of the same, would give rise to one equity share
of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up. The Details of the Options
granted / vested are as under:

Date of Grant ( the options granted on 23rd January, 2008 at Rs. 259.75

27th May, 2008

were cancelled and subsequently, fresh same number of options granted

on 27th May, 2008 at exercise price of Rs.207.05 per option )

Total options granted

175,150

Date of vesting of options

27th May, 2009
(1/3rd of the above options granted)

27th May, 2010
(further 1/3rd of the above options granted)

Total Options vested

116,766

# No employee has exercised any option granted to him / her.

14. Plant Locations :

Division Locations

a) Conductors Division

a) Silvassa* and Nalagarh (H.P.)

b) Oil Division

b) Rabale and Silvassa*

* Union Territory of Dadra & Nagar Haveli

15. Address for Communication

. Shareholders’ Grievances / correspondence should be addressed to the Company

at the Registered Office of the Company at 301, Panorama Complex, R.C.Dutt
Road, Vadodara-390 007.

Ph. (0265) 2331935,2339906 * Fax (0265) 2330309.

E-mail : Investor Grievance Redressal cell : com sec@apar.com
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Declaration regarding compliance by Board Members and Senior
Management Personnel with the Company's Code of Conduct

This is to confirm that the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its employees and Directors. The said Code is available
on the Company's web site.

| confirm that the Company has in respect of the financial year ended 31st March, 2011, received from the senior management
team of the Company and the members of the Board, a declaration of compliance with the Code of Conduct as applicable to
them.

For the purpose of this declaration, Senior Management Team means the Chief Financial Officer, the Company Secretary and all
Vice Presidents and Functional Heads of the Company as on 31st March, 2011.

Place: Mumbai Kushal N. Desai
Date : 27th May, 2011 Managing Director and CEO

Auditors’ Certificate

regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance

To,

The Members

Apar Industries Limited
301, Panorama Complex,
R.C. Dutt Road,
Vadodara-390 007

Dear Sirs,

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Apar Industries Limited, for the year ended 31st
March, 2011, as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with the Stock Exchanges.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination was limited to
a review of the procedures and implementations thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance with the conditions
of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the said clauses. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial
statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and the representations made by
the Directors and the Management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as
stipulated in Clause 49 of the above mentioned Listing Agreement.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Sharp & Tannan
Chartered Accountants
Registration No.109982W
by the hand of

Milind P. Phadke

Place: Mumbai Partner
Date: 27th May, 2011 Membership No.033013
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APAR INDUSTRIES LTD.

Auditors’ Report

To the Shareholders of
Apar Industries Limited

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Apar Industries
Limited as at 31st March, 2011, the Profit and Loss Account and
also the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date,
annexed thereto. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in India. Those Standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In accordance with provisions of Section 227 of the Companies
Act 1956, we report that:

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order,
2003 and as amended by the Companies (Auditor’s Report)
(Amendment) Order, 2004 (the 'Order’) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of Section 227 (4A)
of the Companies Act, 1956, we enclose in the Annexure, a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of
the said Order.

2. Further to our comments in the Annexure referred to above,
we report that:

(a) we have obtained all information and explanations,
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required
by law have been kept by the Company, so far as
appears from our examination of those books;

(c) the Balance Sheet, the Profit and Loss Account and the
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report are in
agreement with the books of account;

(d) in our opinion, the Balance Sheet, the Profit and Loss
Account and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
report comply with the accounting standards referred to
in Section 211 (3C) of the Companies Act, 1956; and

(e) on the basis of the written representations received
from directors of the Company as on 31st March, 2011,
and taken on record by the Board of Directors, we report
that none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st
March, 2011, from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 274 (1)(g) of the Companies Act, 1956.
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(f) The Company has not provided for mark-to-market
losses on commodity forward contracts aggregating to
Rs.280,401,393 as at 31st March, 2011. Consequently,
after considering the deferred tax effect, the profit for
the year is lower by Rs.79,889, 117, the Current Liabilities
and Provisions as at 31st March, 2011 have been
understated by Rs. 280,401,393, the closing Reserves as
at 31st March, 2011 are overstated by Rs. 187,259,060
and the opening Reserves as at 1st April, 2010 are
overstated by Rs.264,057,967. Had the observation
made by us been considered, the profit after tax for the
year would have been Rs.1,138,420,534 (as against the
reported profit after tax of Rs.1,058,531,417), the
Current Liabilities and Provisions would have been
Rs.14,465,091,895 (as against the reported Current
Liabilities and Provisions of Rs.14,184,690,502), the
closing Reserves would have been Rs.3,236,668,688 (as
against  the reported closing  Reserves  of
Rs.3,423,927,748) and the opening Reserves as at 1st
April, 2070 would have been Rs.2,342,420,335 (as
against the reported opening Reserves  of
Rs.2,606,478,302). (Refer Note 5 of Schedule 22)

Subject to our observations referred to in paragraph 2(f)
above and its consequential effects on the financial
statements, in our opinion, and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to
us, the said financial statements, read together with the
Significant Accounting Policies in Schedule ‘21" and the
Notes to the Financial Statements in Schedule '22’, give
the information required by the Companies Act, 1956, in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India:

(i) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of

affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2011;

(i) in the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the
profit for the year ended on that date; and

(iii) in case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows
for the year ended on that date.

Sharp & Tannan
Chartered Accountants
Registration No.: 109982W
by the hand of

Milind P. Phadke
Partner

Mumbai, 27th May, 2011 Membership No.: 033013



Annexure to the Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in Paragraph 1 of our report of even date)

iii)

a) The Company is maintaining proper records to show
full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of all fixed assets.

b) As explained to us, these fixed assets have been
physically verified by the management, in accordance
with a phased programme of verification, which in our
opinion, is reasonable, considering the size of the
Company and nature of its assets. The frequency of
physical verification is reasonable and no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

¢) The Company has not disposed off any substantial part
of its fixed assets during the year, so as to affect its
going concern status.

As explained to us, the inventories have been physically
verified by the management during the year. In our
opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable.

Q
~

b) As per the information given to us, the procedures of
physical verification of inventory followed by the
management are, in our opinion, reasonable and
adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the
nature of its business.

¢) The Company is maintaining proper records of
inventory. The discrepancies noticed on verification
between the physical stocks and the book records,
which were not material, have been properly dealt with
in the books of account.

QL
~

According to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms and other parties
covered in the register maintained under Section 301
of the Companies Act, 1956. Accordingly, Paragraphs
4(iii)(b), (c) and (d) of the Order, are not applicable to
the Company.

b) According to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has taken unsecured loans from
thirteen parties covered in the register maintained under
Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. The
aggregate of the maximum amount of
outstanding during the year and the aggregate of the
year-end balances of such loans was Rs. 698,905,825,
and Rs. 145,423,033 respectively.

loans

¢) In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the rate of interest and other
terms and conditions of the loans taken by the

Vi)

vii)

Company, are prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest
of the Company.

d) In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company is regular in
repayment of principal and interest, where stipulations
have been made.
stipulations and repayment of both principal and
interest are stated at call, the Company is regular in the
payment of principal and interest as and when
demanded.

In cases where there are no

In our opinion, and according to the information and
explanations given to us, there is an adequate internal
control system commensurate with the size of the
Company and nature of its business, for the purchase of
inventory and fixed assets and for the sale of goods and
services. During the course of audit, we have neither come
across nor have been informed of any continuing failure
to correct major weaknesses in the aforesaid internal
control system.

a) According to the information and explanations given to
us, we are of the opinion that the particulars of
contracts or arrangements that need to be entered in
the register maintained under Section 301 of the
Companies Act, 1956, have been so entered.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, there are no transactions
made in pursuance of such contracts or arrangements
entered in the register maintained under Section 301
of the Companies Act, 1956 and exceeding the value
of rupees five lakhs in respect of any party during the
year, have been made at prices which are reasonable
having regard to the prevailing market prices at the
relevant time.

The Company has accepted deposits from the public and
in our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the directives issued by the
Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 58A,
58AA and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act,
1956 and the rules framed there under, where applicable,
have been complied with. We are informed that no order
has been passed by the Company Law Board or National
Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any
Court or any other Tribunal.

In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system
commensurate with its size and nature of its business.
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Annexure to the Auditors’ Report

viii) We have broadly reviewed the books of account and
records maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules
prescribed by the Central Government for the maintenance
of cost records under Section 209 (1) (d) of the Companies
Act, 1956, in respect of the products and are of the
opinion that prima facie the prescribed accounts and
records have been made and maintained. The contents of
these accounts and records have not been examined by us.

ix) a) According to the information and explanations given to
us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues including
provident fund, investor education and protection fund,

employees state insurance, income-tax, sales tax, wealth
tax, service tax, custom duty, excise duty, cess and other
statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate
authorities. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts were
in arrears as at 31st March, 2011, for a period of more
than six months from the date they become payable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to

us and the records of the Company examined by us, the
particulars of sales tax, service tax, excise duty, custom
duty and cess as at 31st March, 2011, which have not
been deposited on account of a dispute, are as under:

Name of the Nature of the Amount Period to which Forum where disputes
Statute disputed dues Rupees* the amount relates are pending
The Central Sales Tax Act, | Tax, interest 83,181 1998-99 Tribunal
1956, Local Sales Tax Acts | and penalty 61,205,190 2002-03
and Works Contract 2003-04 Commissioner VAT
Tax Act 2004-05
2006-07
99,583 2008-09 Deputy Commissioner
of Taxes (Appeals)
1,205,837 1998-99 Assistant Commissioner
2001-02 to 2004-05
60,204 2003-04 and 2004-05 Commercial Tax Officer
The Central Excise Act, Duty, service 44,507,841 1999-2000 to 2001-02 Supreme Court
1944, the Customs Act, tax and penalty 35,489,508 1996-97 to 1999-2000 CESTAT
1962 and Service tax 2001-02
under the Finance Act, 2003-04 to 2006-07
1994
925,851 1993-94 DGFT, Mumbai
36,286,978 2000-01 to 2009-10 Commissioner (Appeals)

* Net of pre-deposit paid in getting the stay / appeal admitted
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Xi)

Xii)

xiii)

Xiv)

XV)

XVi)

The Company has no accumulated losses as at 31st March,
2011 and it has not incurred any cash losses in the financial
year ended on that date and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

According to the information and explanations given to
us, in our opinion the Company has not defaulted in the
repayment of dues to any financial institutions or bank as
at the balance sheet date. The Company has not issued
any debentures.

According to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has not granted any loans and advances
on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares,
debentures and other securities.

The provisions of any special statute applicable to chit
fund/nidhi/mutual benefit fund/society are not applicable
to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company is not dealing in or
trading in securities. The Company has invested surplus
fund in mutual funds. According to the information and
explanations given to us, proper records have been made
of the transactions and contracts and timely entries have
been made therein.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the terms and conditions of
guarantee given by the Company for loans taken by others
from banks or financial institutions are not prima facie
prejudicial to the interests of the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the term loans have been applied
for the purposes for which they were obtained.

XVii)

According to the information and explanations given to us
and on overall examination of the balance sheet of the
Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term
basis have been used for long-term investments.

xviii) The Company has not made any preferential allotment of

(xix)

(xx)

(xxi)

Mumbai, 27th May, 2011

shares to parties or companies covered in the register
maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act,
1956, during the year.

The Company has not issued any debentures during the
year. Accordingly, Paragraph 4 (xix) of the Order pertaining
to creation of security or charge for debentures does not
arise.

The Company has not raised any money by public issues
during the year. Accordingly, Paragraph 4 (xx) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of books and records
of the Company, carried out in accordance with the
generally accepted auditing practices in India, and
according to the information and explanations given to us,
we have neither come across any instances of material
fraud on or by the Company, noticed or reported during
the year, nor have we been informed of such case by the
management.

Sharp & Tannan
Chartered Accountants
Registration No.: 109982W
by the hand of

Milind P. Phadke
Partner
Membership No.: 033013
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APAR INDUSTRIES LTD.

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2011*

(Amount in Rupees)

Schedule As at 31.03.2011 | As at 31.03.2010
SOURCES OF FUNDS
Shareholders' Funds
Share capital 323,360,310 323,360,310
Reserves and surplus 2 3,423,927,748 2,606,478,302
3,747,288,058| 2,929,838,612
Loan Funds
Secured loans 3 608,073,782 574,547,033
Unsecured loans 510,225,033 301,747,157
1,118,298,815 876,294,190
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 5 93,477,472 80,319,908
Total 4,959,064,345| 3,886,452,710
APPLICATION OF FUNDS
Fixed Assets 6
Gross block 1,944,573,440 1,797,823,482
Less: Depreciation 727,741,405 599,044,910
Net block 1,216,832,035 1,198,778,572
Capital work-in-progress / advances 39,215,140 9,244,166
1,256,047,175 1,208,022,738
Fixed assets held for sale 231,928 731,928
Investments 7 315,540,704 317,507,978
Current assets, loans and advances
Inventories 8 4,273,356,355 3,782,880,460
Sundry debtors 9 6,338,926,238 3,784,270,398
Cash and bank balances 10 3,832,696,353 4,697,068,673
Loans and advances 11 3,126,956,094 2,047,919,486
17,571,935,040 14,312,139,017
Less: Current liabilities and provisions
Current liabilities 12 13,815,389,633 11,742,427,793
Provisions 13 369,300,869 209,521,158
14,184,690,502 11,951,948,951
Net current assets 3,387,244,538 2,360,190,066
Miscellaneous expenditure 14 - -
(to the extent not written off or adjusted)
Total 4,959,064,345| 3,886,452,710
Significant Accounting Policies 21
Notes to the Financial Statements 22

(* Refer Note 18 of Schedule 22)

The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report attached

Sharp & Tannan

Chartered Accountants
Registration No.: 109982W
by the hand of

Kushal N. Desai
Managing Director &
Chief Executive Officer

Milind P. Phadke
Partner
Membership No. 033013

Place : Mumbai
Dated : 27th May, 2011
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Director

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

V. C. Diwadkar
Chief Financial Officer

Sanjaya R. Kunder

Company Secretary



Profit and Loss Account or the year ended 31st March, 2011*

(Amount in Rupees)

Schedule 2010-2011 2009-2010
INCOME
Sale of goods, services and related recoveries 15 29,836,362,653| 21,675,561,475
Less : Excise duty 2,651,669,748 1,695,018,777
27,184,692,905| 19,980,542,698
Other income 16 70,505,706 166,385,829
27,255,198,611| 20,146,928,527
EXPENDITURE
Operating and other expenses 17 25,564,392,659| 18,974,103,833
Decrease / (Increase) in stocks 18 (10,846,959) (212,282,284)
Depreciation and amortisation 137,092,054 118,791,962
Interest and discounting charges (net) 19 (32,059,618) 195,598,616

25,658,578,136

19,076,212,127

Profit before taxation and exceptional items
Exceptional items 20

1,596,620,475
1,967,274

1,070,716,400
22,611,692

Profit before taxation

1,594,653,201

1,048,104,708

Provision for taxation:

Current tax 480,000,000 192,000,000
Wealth tax 200,000 200,000
Deferred tax - charge/(credit) 13,157,564 (5,461,889)
Earlier years taxes 42,764,220 -
Profit after taxation and before extraordinary items 1,058,531,417 861,366,597
Extraordinary items (net of tax) - 555,538,198
Profit after taxation and extraordinary items 1,058,531,417 305,828,399
Balance of profit brought forward 1,027,959,509 998,166,339

Amount available for appropriations

2,086,490,926

1,303,994,738

Appropriations:

Transfer to General reserve
Interim dividend:

On Equity shares

Tax on Interim dividend
Proposed dividend:

On Equity shares

Tax on dividend

(110,000,000)

(80,840,078)
(13,427,537)

(125,903,379)
(20,910,977)

(87,500,000)

(161,680,155)
(26,855,074)

Balance carried to Balance Sheet

1,735,408,955

1,027,959,509

Earnings Per Share (Refer Note 21 of Schedule 22) of face value of Rs.10

Basic and Diluted (before extraordinary items)

Basic and Diluted (after extraordinary items)

Significant Accounting Policies 21
Notes to the Financial Statements 22

32.74
32.74

26.64
9.46

(*Refer Note 18 of Schedule 22)

The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report attached

Sharp & Tannan

Chartered Accountants
Registration No.: 109982W
by the hand of

Milind P. Phadke
Partner
Membership No. 033013

Place : Mumbai
Dated : 27th May, 2011

Kushal N. Desai
Managing Director &
Chief Executive Officer

F. B. Virani
Director

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

V. C. Diwadkar
Chief Financial Officer

Sanjaya R. Kunder

Company Secretary
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APAR INDUSTRIES LTD.

Schedules forming part of the Financial Statements: 31st March, 2011

(Amount in Rupees)

As at 31.03.2011

As at 31.03.2010

Schedule B SHARE CAPITAL

(A) Authorised:

91,998,750 Equity shares of Rs.10 each 919,987,500 919,987,500
919,987,500 919,987,500

(B) Issued and Subscribed:

32,336,031 Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid 323,360,310 323,360,310
323,360,310 323,360,310

Schedule RESERVES AND SURPLUS

Capital Reserve

As per last balance sheet 4,950,746 4,950,746

Capital Redemption Reserve

As per last balance Sheet 147,547,770 147,547,770

Securities Premium Account

As per last balance sheet 588,520,277 588,520,277

General Reserve

As per last balance sheet 837,500,000 750,000,000

Add : Transfer from profit and loss account 110,000,000 87,500,000
947,500,000 837,500,000

Surplus in profit and loss account 1,735,408,955 1,027,959,509

3,423,927,748| 2,606,478,302

Schedule JEN| SECURED LOANS

From Banks :

i) Cash credit/Working capital demand loans 608,073,782 453,307,984
i) Term loans - 121,239,049
608,073,782 574,547,033

Notes:

The Cash credit/Working capital demand loans/Pre-shipment export finance from banks are secured by:

« hypothecation of specified stocks, specified book debts of the Company and movable plant and machinery at Nalagarh Unit.

« first charge by way of equitable mortgage by deposit of title deeds of Company's specified immovable’s properties, both

present and future.

« first charge by way of equitable mortgage by deposit of title deeds of certain immovable’s properties of Apar Corporation

Private Limited, a related party.

Schedule JZll UNSECURED LOANS

Fixed deposits*

From public 214,547,000 197,319,000
From directors 45,100,000 45,100,000

259,647,000 242,419,000
Short term loan from a bank* 250,000,000 -
Loans from directors (Repayable at call) - 19,500,000
Inter corporate deposits (Repayable at call) 578,033 39,828,157

510,225,033 301,747,157

*Repayable within one year Rs. 362,264,000; (Previous year Rs.77,527,000)
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Schedules forming part of the Financial Statements: 31st March, 2011

(Amount in Rupees)

As at 31.03.2011 | As at 31.03.2010
Schedule [s81 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY (NET)
Deferred tax liability arising on account of timing difference in:
— Book and Tax depreciation 120,481,425 109,980,856
Deferred tax assets arising on account of timing difference in:
— Provision for doubtful debts and advances 10,150,044 12,403,868
— Provision for gratuity and leave salary 7,584,491 6,490,728
— Voluntary retirement scheme 255,171 2,290,269
— Expenses allowable on payment basis 9,014,247 8,476,083

(27,003,953) 29,660,948

Deferred tax liability (net) 93,477,472 80,319,908

Schedule H

FIXED ASSETS

GROSS BLOCK (at cost)

DEPRECIATION / AMORTISATION

WRITTEN DOWN VALUE

As at Additions Deductions As at Upto Deductions For the Upto As at As at
01.04.2010 31.03.2011 31.3.2010 year 31.03.2011 | 31.03.2011 31.03.2010

Tangible Assets

Land - Freehold 42,388,743 42,388,743 - - 42,388,743 42,388,743

Buildings 412,572,623 | 13,321,226 425,893,849 | 86,916,135 18,224,612 | 105,140,748 | 320,753,101 | 325,656,488
Plant and machinery * | 1,133,720,746 | 67,653,966 (4,110,034)| 1,197,264,677 | 391,315,498 | (2,554,466) | 99,590,802 | 488,351,834 | 708,912,844 | 742,405,248
Furniture, fixture and 106,274,249 | 10,172,792 (173,200)| 116,273,841 81,962,207 (99,497) 7,404,647 | 89,267,357 27,006,483 24,312,042
equipments
Motor vehicles 36,220,630 8,798,848 (7,190,164) 37,829,314 19,973,413 (5,741,593) 5,464,370 | 19,696,189 18,133,125 16,247,217
Intangible Assets

Land - Leasehold 39,026,979 | 54,969,100 93,996,079 6,914,982 718,347 7,633,329 86,362,750 | 32,111,997

Specialised software| 27,619,512 3,307,425 30,926,937 | 11,962,675 5,689,274 | 17,651,949 13,274,989 15,656,837

1,797,823,482 | 158,223,357 (11,473,398) | 1,944,573,440 | 599,044,910 | (8,395,556) | 137,092,052 | 727,741,405 | 1,216,832,035 |1,198,778,572

Previous year 1,671,961,751 | 134,283,794 (8,422,063) | 1,797,823,482 | 486,256,190 | (6,003,242) | 118,791,962 | 599,044,910
Capital work-in-progress/ Advances 39,215,140 9,244,166
Total 1,256,047,175 | 1,208,022,738
Notes:

* includes Rs.5,865,095, (Previous year Rs.11,564,360) for capital expenditure on Research and development (Refer Note 11 of Schedule 22)
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APAR INDUSTRIES LTD.

Schedules forming part of the Financial Statements: 31st March, 2011

(Amount in Rupees)

As at 31.03.2011 | As at 31.03.2010
Schedule 741 INVESTMENTS - (AT COST)
Long-term, unquoted, unless otherwise stated
A. Government of India securities:
- 6 Year National Savings Certificates 4,240 4,240
- 12 Year National Defence Certificates 6,000 6,000
- 6 Year National Savings Certificates
(held as security by Government Departments) 7,000 7,000
17,240 17,240
B. Subsidiary companies
In Equity Shares:
- 100,000; (Previous year 100,000) Ordinary shares of S$ 1 each 2,643,645 2,643,645
fully paid in Petroleum Specialities Pte Limited, Singapore
- Nil; (Previous year 1) Share of AED 150,000 each fully - 1,967,274
paid in Poweroil Speciality Products FZE, Sharjah
(Refer Note 4 of Schedule 22)
- 16,353,875; (Previous year 16,353,875) Equity shares of -
Uniflex Cables Limited of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up (quoted) 834,371,767 834,371,767
Less : Provision for dimunition in value (555,538,198) (555,538,198)
(Refer Note 6 of Schedule 22)
278,833,569 278,833,569
- 2,600,000 Fully Convertiable Warrants of Uniflex Cables
Limited (Face value Rs. 42.50 each) partly paid Rs. 4.25 each - 11,050,000
Less: Lapsed during the year - (11,050,000)
281,477,214 283,444,488
C. Trade:
In Equity Shares:
Joint Venture
3,383,625 shares (Previous year 3,383,625) of Apar Chematek
Lubricants Limited of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up 33,836,250 33,836,250
D. Non Trade:
4,200 shares (Previous year 4,200) of Natpur Co-operative Bank
Limited of Rs. 50 each 210,000 210,000
315,540,704 317,507,978
Aggregate book value of unquoted investments 36,707,135 38,674,409
Aggregate book value of quoted investments 278,833,569 278,833,569
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 264,932,775 278,833,569
Short term investment in liquid fund purchased and sold during the year
Face Value Unit Sales Value
(Rs.) (Numbers) (Rs.)
Kotak Liquid (Institutional Premium) -Daily Dividend 10 42,747,783 507,651,174
HDFC Liquid Fund Premium Plan-Daily Dividend Option Reinvest 10 154,623,441 | 1,895,652,465
ICICI Prudential Liquid Super Institutional Plan - Div -Daily 10 1,275,083 127,536,488
Kotak Floter Short Term-Daily Dividend 10 496,042 5,019,286
Reliance Liquid Fund - Treasury Plan-Institutional Option - Daily Dividend Option 10 6,516,216 82,537,906
L & T Freedom Income-Short Term Fund 10 34,123 500,365
Idbi Liquid Fund - Daily Dividend - Reinvestment 10 12,994,571 133,082,306
Baroda Pioneer Liquid Fund - Daily Dividend Plan 10 1,490,965 15,006,416
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Schedules forming part of the Financial Statements: 31st March, 2011

(Amount in Rupees)

As at 31.03.2011

As at 31.03.2010

Schedule Bl INVENTORIES

(At lower of cost and net realisable value)
Stores and spare parts

Raw materials and components #
Work-in-progress

Finished goods *

82,973,070
3,248,583,426
302,102,595
639,697,264

80,299,795
2,771,627,765
249,467,996
681,484,904

4,273,356,355

3,782,880,460

# Including Raw materials in transit Rs. 1,318,777,322; (Previous year Rs. 1,289,489,693)
* Including stock of traded goods Rs. 18,767,061; (Previous year Rs. 68,759,918)

Schedule JEN SUNDRY DEBTORS

Debts outstanding for a period exceeding six months
Secured

Considered good 335,356 317,545

Unsecured

Considered good 301,759,791 502,336,705

Considered doubtful 30,554,016 37,338,555
332,649,163 539,992,805

Other debts - Considered good *

Secured 3,369,644 2,137,455

Unsecured 6,033,461,447| 3,279,478,693

Less: Provision for doubtful debts

6,036,831,091
30,554,016

3,281,616,148
37,338,555

6,338,926,238

3,784,270,398

* includes receivable from subsidiaries / down-stream subsidiaries

31.03.2011 31.03.2010
Poweroil Speciality Products FZE - 16,373,168
Uniflex Cables Limited 131,116,822 94,553,578
Petroleum Specialities Pte Limited 9,842,104 10,724,286
Marine Cables & Wires Private Limited - 2,117,167
140,958,926 123,768,199
Schedule CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash on hand 345,525 614,785
Funds in transit 27,099,138 16,000,044
Balances with scheduled banks :
in current accounts 658,742,719 715,598,764
in deposit accounts 20,021,105 19,292,672

in margin money accounts *

3,126,257,106

3,945,331,648

Balances with non-scheduled banks :
in current accounts**

3,805,020,930

230,760

4,680,223,084

230,760

3,832,696,353

4,697,068,673

*  Against letters of credits for Company's imports of raw materials

** Maximum balance at any time during the year Rs. 230,760; (Previous year Rs. 230,760)
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APAR INDUSTRIES LTD.

Schedules forming part of the Financial Statements: 31st March, 2011

(Amount in Rupees)

As at 31.03.2011

As at 31.03.2010

Schedule EHN LOANS AND ADVANCES

Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated
Loans and advances to subsidiary companies *

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received **

Considered good
Considered doubtful

1,287,875,580

1,752,476,604

710,295,330

1,099,818,145

Less: Provision for doubtful advances

1,287,875,580

1,099,818,145

Balances with excise
Advance payments of tax, less provisions
Interest accrued but not due on deposits/margin monies

1,287,875,580

1,099,818,145

755,378 1,080,135
= 172,089,392
85,848,532 64,636,484

3,126,956,094

2,047,919,486

* Loans and advances to 31.03.2011 Maximum amount 31.03.2010 Maximum amount
subsidiary companies Rupees due at any time Rupees due at any time
during the year during the year
Rupees Rupees
Poweroil Speciality Products FZE - 4,646,636 4,567,273 4,571,860
Uniflex Cables Limited 1,749,424,815 1,749,424,815 705,686,435 940,266,616
Petroleum Specialities Pte Limited - 161,167 41,622 165,351
Marine Cables & Wires Private Limited 3,051,789 3,051,789 - -
** Includes Rs. 3,975,095 being excise/custom duty paid under protest (Previous year Rs. 3,975,095).
Includes Rs. 6,110,417 being sales tax paid under protest (Previous year Rs. 6,110,417).
Schedule CURRENT LIABILITIES
Sundry creditors (Refer Note 12 of Schedule 22)
— Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 27,589,443 10,336,317
— Total outstanding dues of other than micro and small enterprises 11,180,622,191 9,416,801,893
Subsidiary companies 12,228,195 10,749,864
Investor Education and Protection Fund (Refer Note 22 of Schedule 22)
Unclaimed dividend 5,867,958 5,892,932
Unpaid matured deposits 59,000 761,000
Interest accrued on above 40,818 30,754
Other liabilities 2,535,468,793| 2,246,951,454
Interest accrued but not due on loans 53,513,235 50,903,579

13,815,389,633

11,742,427,793

Schedule [fe] PROVISIONS

Provision for taxes, net of advance tax 199,655,415 -

Proposed dividend 125,903,379 161,680,155

Tax on proposed dividend 20,910,